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Location

50B SKENE STREET NEWTOWN, GREATER GEELONG CITY



Municipality

GREATER GEELONG CITY

Level of significance

Registered

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number

H1165

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO217

VHR Registration

April 18, 1996

Heritage Listing

Victorian Heritage Register

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - May 7, 1999

Rannoch House was constructed in stages with the first part being a two storey Barrabool sandstone building
with single storey western wing commenced in 1851 and 1852 for Captain Francis Ormond. It was designed by
early Geelong architects Walter Sheridan and George Wright. This building operated as Henry Deering's Royal
Museum Hotel in 1854, becoming Lisdou House in 1855, a school for "young ladies" run by Misses Greer. The
eastern wing and conservatory were designed by Jacob Pitman and constructed in 1863 for A S Robertson.

The Renaissance Revival appearance of the building may also date from this time. Alexander Miller, benefactor,
owned Rannoch House from 1882 until at least 1906 and lived there for some of that time. John Rout Hopkins,
grazier of Wormbete, also lived at Rannoch House from 1889 for a period of time. During this century the house
was occupied for a number of years by the Church of England Girls Grammar school, and was later divided into a
number of flats.

Rannoch House is of architectural and historic significance to the State of Victoria.

Rannoch House is architecturally important as an extraordinary example of a Renaissance Revival town house,
complete with balustraded parapets and timber loggia. The conservatory with its Ionic pilasters is particularly
notable and reinforces the Renaissance Revival character of the building. Rannoch House is important for
demonstrating a sequence of styles, from the original simple Georgian two storey building with single storey
western wing, to the 1863 additions creating a town house of Palladian form with Renaissance Revival detailing.
Rannoch House is also important as an extraordinary example of architects' work from two periods. The central
two storey section of Rannoch House and the single storey western wing comprise the only identified extant work
of early Geelong architects Walter Sheridan and George Wright. The 1863 additions including the conservatory
form an extraordinary example of the work of Jacob Pitman.

Rannoch House is historically important for its associations with the well known English and Australian
actor/theatre manager Henry Deering who planned entertainment from Shakespearian plays to acrobatics for the
people of Geelong in the mid nineteenth century. Rannoch House is also important for its associations with



notable pioneers and pastoralists Captain Francis Ormond, the Hon Francis Ormond, A S Robertson and J R
Hopkins. It is also important for its association with the benefactor Alexander Miller.

[The additional information below is from Geelong Regional Commission.]

The design of Rannoch House can be attributed to noted Geelong architects Backhouse and Reynolds and was
constructed in 1855-58 as a renaissance revival two storey stuccoed masonry residence with an ornate arcuated
timber verandah and loggia. AS Robertson wealthy pastoralist and formerly of Burnside at Murgheboluc was the
first owner. Jacob Pitman architect of Geelong designed the single storey conservative classical style wings to
the central pavilion of 1858 in 1863. The finely detailed stables by Backhouse and Reynolds to the rear of the
house were erected of squared coursed basalt in 1858. At the time of completion in 1863 Rannoch House was
one of the finest and most substantial town houses in Victoria.

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.

Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Construction dates 1851, 

Architect/Designer Sheridan, Walter, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place, 

Hermes Number 1271

Property Number

History

Associated People: Arch/Design: George Wright; Jacob Pitman

https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
https://www.heritage.vic.gov.au/permits-and-approvals/heritage-permit-exemptions


Extent of Registration

AMENDMENT OF REGISTER OF HISTORIC BUILDINGS
Historic Building No. 1165:
Rannoch House, 260 Pakingtonr Street, Newtown, City of Greater Geelong.
Extent:
To the extent of:
1. All the buildings known as Rannoch House comprising the main house marked B-1 and the former stables
marked B-2 on Plan 6000437 endorsed by the Chair, Historic Buildings Council and held by the Director, Historic
Buildings Council.
2. All of the land described in Certificate of Title Volume 10033 Folio 502, marked -L1 on Plan 6000437 endorsed
by the Chair, Historic Buildings Council and held by the Director, Historic Buildings Council.
[Victoria Government Gazette No. G15 18 April 1996 p.958]

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

